
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service” 

 
 
 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

OCTOBER 20, 2014, 6:00 PM 
NEWBERG PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
 
WORK SESSIONS ARE INTENDED FOR DISCUSSION. NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN ON THE 
AGENDA ITEMS AND NO DECISIONS WILL BE MADE.  NO ORAL OR WRITTEN TESTIMONY WILL 
BE HEARD OR RECEIVED FROM THE PUBLIC. 
 
 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. REVIEW OF COUNCIL AGENDA AND MEETING 
 
IV. COUNCIL ITEMS 
 1. Presentation on Chehalem Pool Renovation 
 2. Presentation on Waste Management Green 4 Growth grant and Master Plan  
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: 
In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City Recorder’s Office of any special physical accommodations you 
may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than two business days prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, 
please contact the city recorder at (503) 537-1283.  For TTY service please dial 711. 

 



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (October 20, 2014) Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

OCTOBER 20, 2014, 7:00 PM 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
 

Mission Statement 
The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, 
dynamic and diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity. 

 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 1. Presentation by Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Consider a motion approving the October 6, 2014 City Council meeting minutes.  
                                                                                                                                    (Pages 1-12) 

2. Approve Resolution No. 2014-3164, A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager  
Approve the Lease Purchase of one replacement vehicle for the Newberg-Dundee 
Police Department and reimburse itself from the proceeds of a tax-exempt financing.  

(Pages 13-14) 
 

3. Approve Resolution No. 2014-3167, A Resolution adopting the Yamhill County   (Pages 15-54) 
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.  

 
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Approve Order No. 2014-035, An Order Establishing a Public Safety Fee in the  

amount of two (2) dollars per equivalency dwelling unit (EDU) per month for  
the purpose of funding two (2) communications officers.              (Pages 55-138) 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

 



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (October 20, 2014) Page 2 of 2 

   
VIII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
IV.  EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

1. Executive session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2) (h) Rights and Duties regarding  
litigation likely to be filed  – Potential Nuisance Abatement  

2. Executive session pursuant to ORS 192.660 (i) regarding Performance Evaluations of  
 Public Officers and Employees  - City Attorney 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City Recorder’s 
Office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than two business 
days prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please dial 711. 

 

Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. Written testimony can be submitted to the Council the night of the meeting 
except for a land use hearing process, which has different guidelines.  
 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: October 20, 2014 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Minutes  
Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Sue Ryan, Interim City Recorder 
Dept.: Administration 
File No.:  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve City Council minutes from October 6th, 2014. 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 1 



 

 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 6, 2014)  Page 1 of 6 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

OCTOBER 6, 2014, 7:00 PM 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (401 E. THIRD STREET) 

 
A work session was held at 6:00 p.m. preceding the meeting. Public Works Director Jay Harris introduced a guest 
who presented information on the Springs Divestiture Update. Silas Olson, of Hiland Water Corporation, spoke 
and referred to a handout (Exhibit A). Councilor Rierson reported on the turnout for the Great Willamette Cleanup 
and its activities. He asked the Council to start thinking about the list of street trees and their subsequent impact 
as an item for future discussion. Mayor Andrews asked who was going to the next Local Government Dinner 
planned for October 30 in Carlton.  
 
All Councilors, the Mayor, City Manager, City Attorney, Department Heads and the Interim City Recorder were 
present. No action was taken and no decisions were made.   
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Denise Bacon Mike Corey 
 Bart Rierson Stephen McKinney  Lesley Woodruff 
 Ryan Howard 
 
Staff Present: Jacque Betz, City Manager Truman Stone, City Attorney 
 Sue Ryan, Interim City Recorder  Jay Harris, Public Works Director 
 Steve Olson, Interim Planning  
 and Building Director 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Ms. Jacque Betz, City Manager, said a $700 request had been received from the Ford Family Foundation Cohort 
to help finish the FISH Food Bank project. She said their project is designing and renovating the space for the 
entryway and volunteers. She said there have been other organizations that have requested funds and the previous 
requests made.  
 
Mayor Andrews said they would take the request up under Council business.  
 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
  
There was discussion on accepting written testimony emailed to the City Recorder earlier in the day from citizen 
Robert Soppe. One submitted page dealt with his comments made at the September 15, 2014 Council meeting 
regarding comments made during Public Comment on parking at George Fox University, the agenda template, 
and the process for submitting written testimony (Exhibit A). A second submitted page dealt with written 
testimony for the public hearing on Ordinance 2014-2777. A third submitted page dealt with the motion to lift the 
moratorium on enforcement of the temporary and portable sign provisions.  
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 2 



 

 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 6, 2014)  Page 2 of 6 

MOTION:   Rierson/Bacon moved to accept Robert Soppe’s written testimony and apply it to the 
corresponding areas of Council business.  
Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No)  

 
 
 

MOTION:   Rierson/Bacon moved to approve the September 15, 2014 City Council meeting minutes to attach 
the comments of Robert Soppe regarding the minutes , approving content of the 2014-2015 Notice of Funding 
Availability from the Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund.  
Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No)  

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Mayor Andrews opened the hearing on Ordinance No. 2014-2777, Establishing a Tax on the Sale of 
Marijuana and Marijuana-Infused Products in the City of Newberg at 7:10 p.m. 
 
Mayor Andrews called for conflicts of interest or abstentions. 
 
Staff Report:  City Attorney Truman Stone delivered his staff report (Exhibit B) said the ordinance had been 
drafted at Council’s direction and be brought back tonight due to the timeframe of the pending ballot measure 
and the preemption that would occur under that ballot measure. He explained the background on the measure 
and the approach various cities in Oregon had taken on addressing the issue. He said initially the ordinance had 
been drafted with an emergency clause but through research he discovered there is a constitutional prohibition 
in the Oregon Constitution that prohibits the passage of product taxation by emergency passage. He said if the 
Council were to adopt it with an emergency clause then if the Court were to challenge it the emergency clause 
would have to be removed. He said if the Council took out the emergency clause this evening it would mean the 
ordinance would take effect 30 days after the passage of the ordinance. 
 
Councilor McKinney asked where the collected taxes would go. CA Stone said the general fund but the Council 
could designate a specific place. Mayor Andrews asked should it be done via the ordinance or be done by 
resolution. CA Stone said it could be done during the budget, which could statutorily limit the use of the money. 
Mayor Andrews asked if the Council wanted to specify where it should go such as to Public Safety would that 
be done by ordinance or resolution because to do so during the budget process seemed unpredictable. CA Stone 
said it could be done by ordinance, which would statutorily limit where the money could go. He said a 
resolution or other means could direct where the money would go. 
 
Councilor Howard asked if there was a need to segregate the funds in case the court rules at a later date that the 
funds need to be returned would it be feasible to do so? CA Stone said it is not certain this would be upheld by 
the courts but if the City does not pass a tax measure prior to the effective date of the ballot measure then the 
City would be preempted. He said it is possible under the language of Ballot Measure 91 to have a local tax in 
place before the effective date of the ballot measure. He said it is also possible the tax could be challenged and 
ruled ineffective by the courts with the legal process taking a significant amount of time. He said within one to 
three years there could be tax collected by the City and there could be a potential outcome where the funds 
would have to be repaid. He said it would be a consideration for the Finance Manger, the City Manager and the 
Council to not spend the revenue until the legal issues are resolved.  
 
Councilor Corey asked if the gross receipts tax is passed before the initiative, it is not clear whether it will be a 
valid tax ? CA Stone said it was somewhat uncertain.  Councilor Corey asked about the seller having to pay a 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 3 



 

 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 6, 2014)  Page 3 of 6 

portion of the tax. CA Stone said the ordinance language on administrative expenses was copied from the City’s 
current ordinance on Transient Lodging Tax.  
 
Councilor McKinney asked if it was prudent to not put the funds into the general fund but set the monies aside 
until the legal issues are resolved ? He said the money should be spent on public safety. CA Stone said that was 
not a provision for the ordinance, which is merely setting up the taxing scheme and collection mechanism. He 
said how the money is spent is a separate issue to be determined in the future. He said there is some risk to the 
City that the money collected may have to be paid back and it is difficult to estimate how much revenue would 
be collected. He said depending upon the amount the City should have a contingency plan in place for 
repayment if needed.  
 
Councilor Howard asked about the sales. CA Stone said this ordinance would only tax retail sales. He said some 
cities have ordinances that tax it at several points. Mayor Andrews asked about Page 15 under the Section of 
definitions. He asked about clarifying the section. 
 
Councilor Rierson said the idea of having the ordinance is to fund public safety and be preemptive before the 
passage of Ballot Measure 91. He had a concern about the timeline. CA Stone said if the tax were overturned it 
would be for a reason other than the timing of the passage of the local ordinance. He said the ballot measure 
would not be effective until 30 days after its passage. He said the governor had 30 days post election to make 
official declaration of the ballot measure’s passage. He said the bigger issue is that Ballot Measure 91 contains a 
tax as part of it, he said it would suffer from the same constraints as the City of Newberg that there had to be 
some time period for implementation. 
 
City Manager Betz said what was before the Council tonight was a chance to capture new revenue for the City. 
She outlined the process to collect and allocate the tax, which would be in the future as a separate process from 
tonight’s ordinance. Mayor Andrews asked was it correct that the Council can adopt this tonight, come back 
with a resolution for distribution of the funds and as part of that action or separately designate that the funds be 
held in a reserve? City Manager Betz said to not do that tonight but to do at a separate time after the election 
when staff has had time to research what other cities are doing to be consistent in providing Council with the 
same information. She said it could be done by resolution to dictate how those revenues would be utilized.  
 
Mayor Andrews turned to Page 16 and asked about the passage that the tax is levied on the seller rather than the 
purchaser. There was discussion on Section 3.40.030  ( C) and on the process for payment of the tax. Mayor 
Andrews said on Page 17 and Page 18 he wanted to know the definition of “good cause”.  CA Stone said it 
allows the Finance Director to work with someone if they had difficulty paying the tax. Mayor Andrews asked 
what the legal framework was for good cause. City Manager Betz said it was the City Manager’s purview.  CA 
Stone said the law uses a reasonable person standard for many things.  
 
Mayor Andrews asked about Page 19 – 20 on the section of 20 days being sufficient for collecting the tax. CM 
Betz said she did not have an issue with what was written in the ordinance. Mayor Andrews asked about Page 
21 and the review of the rules and forms by the Finance Director and if it shouldn’t be subject to review by the 
Council. CA Stone said the Council could choose to delegate it to staff or to bring it back to the Council.  
 
Proponents: None 
 
Opponents: None 
 
Undecided: Robert Soppe had submitted written testimony into the record earlier in the day (Exhibit C). 
 
Mayor Andrews closed the hearing at 7:45 p.m. 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 4 



 

 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 6, 2014)  Page 4 of 6 

Deliberations: Mayor Andrews asked CA Stone for his recommendation. CA Stone said he was acting as legal 
counsel so could not make a recommendation but otherwise to strike the emergency clause and making the 
ordinance effective November 5, 2014.  
 

MOTION:  Rierson /Corey moved to waive the second reading of Ordinance No. 2014-2777, Establishing a 
Tax on the Sale of Marijuana and Marijuana-Infused Products in the city of Newberg with the exception of the 
emergency clause and read by title only. Motion carried (5 Yes/ 2 No/Abstain [Howard/McKinney] 

 
Councilor Howard said wasn’t against the concept but he would be voting against the ordinance. He said it was 
unlikely the court were going to uphold their ability to tax it. He said it was clear there would be a uniform tax 
structure across the state and the local governments will get part of the revenue. He said if it went forward there 
would be considerable administrative cost in administering it and the City would have to return the tax revenue. 
He said even if it is upheld, the state can change the structure and equalize it. Councilor Howard said it would 
also be a disincentive to businesses that would want to locate here. Councilor Howard said after 2017 the 
amount of the local tax the City would receive would relate directly to the number of businesses selling the 
product based in the City. He said if Newberg had none, they would receive no tax. He said he felt the Council 
would be taking advantage of a marginalized group by imposing the gross receipts tax.  He said the 
comparisons to the Transient Lodging Tax are inaccurate. He said his perception is there will not be increased 
need for public safety because of the products’ users. He said he doesn’t think it’s needed, it won’t be effective 
and it would be invalidated by the court anyway and would create additional administrative expenses for the 
City. 
 
Councilor Corey said he acknowledged Councilor Howard’s comments but the unknown factor of how the state 
was going to address the tax meant the Council should take care of the issue for the City of Newberg. He said 
the City needs to put a tax on these types of product and it is no different than a sin tax on other products. 
 
 Councilor Rierson said he thought this was their chance now to capture revenue for the City. He said there 
were a lot of unknown factors. He said this was a mechanism to provide the City a way to recover those costs 
but in the future it may not be needed. He said it could be reduced or eliminated in the future. He said if you 
don’t have the ordinance in place you won’t be able to capture that revenue. He said the point on the 
distribution was a point well taken but he said the Council could have the opportunity to overturn it. 
 
Councilor Howard said he wanted to respond to Councilor Corey. He said there was a well-thought out taxation 
scheme for marijuana. He said the efforts of the City to come in and do this was subverting the will of the 
people for the ballot measure. 
 
Mayor Andrews said he was going to vote for it. He said if the City was going to make a preemptive strike they 
needed to do it now. He said they could back away from it in the future it that was what was appropriate. He 
said a growing number of cities is passing this type of ordinance and they were looking at the same struggles 
that Newberg was dealing with. He asked about the number of cities planning to pass the ordinance. CA Stone 
said he did not know the exact number but there were a lot of cities that were considering it including several 
other municipalities were doing it this evening and may potentially be addressing it in November prior to the 
ballot measure’s effective date. Mayor Andrews said if there is a greater number of local entities it would put 
pressure on the Legislature to address the issue. CM Betz said there were many considering it and unifying 
behind the idea because they do not want to miss out on the potential for revenue. Mayor Andrews said it was 
presumptive to also think the Ballot Measure may pass due to recent polls and the current governor and his 
opponent are both opposed to it. He said if it doesn’t pass the ordinance will be moot but otherwise they are 
prepared by having it in place to collect the tax.  
 
Following the motion, CA Stone read the ordinance by title including the amendment and the change in the 
effective date to November 5, 2014 due to the removal of the emergency clause. 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 5 



 

 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 6, 2014)  Page 5 of 6 

 
 

MOTION:  Rierson /Corey moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2014-2777, Establishing a Tax on the Sale of 
Marijuana and Marijuana-Infused Products in the city of Newberg with the exception of the emergency clause 
and to be read by title only. Motion carried (4 Yes/ 2 No/1 Abstain [Howard/Bacon]/[McKinney]) 

 
X. NEW BUSINESS  
 
CA Stone said Council had indicated they wished to lift the moratorium on the enforcement of temporary and 
portable signs. He said this recommendation included affirming Council’s previous commitment to compliance 
through education and enforcement when necessary. 
 
Councilor Howard said he had planned to abstain because he is running for elected office and asked whether he 
could vote. CA Stone said it was a decision that was up to him. Mayor Andrews said there are three Council 
members with election signs posted. He said the issue was temporary and portable signs. There was a discussion 
on election signs and temporary or portable signs.  
 
Councilor Rierson said they have handed the issue off to their Planning Commission and not allowed them to 
conclude their work. He said he planned to vote against the motion. Councilor Corey said his understanding was 
it dealt with the number of signs and not size of signs. He said he was inclined to vote for the motion.  
 
CA Stone said it would include all aspects of regulation under the current Code. Councilor McKinney said it 
precludes talking about umbrellas because it was not part of the previous work. IBPD Olson said the Planning 
Commission will take the issue up on November 13.  
 

MOTION: Rierson/Corey moved to lift the moratorium on enforcement of the temporary and portable 
sign provisions of the Newberg Development Code and instruct City Staff to resume enforcement.     
Motion carried ( 5 Yes/2 No [McKinney/Woodruff]) 

 
 

XI. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
There was discussion on funding the request for the Ford Family Foundation cohort request and the potential 
impact on the budget and future requests. There was discussion on the use of the business/enterprise funds for 
this request. There was discussion on the budget cuts that took place earlier in the year due to constraints. CM 
Betz said the business license item was chosen because it goes into the business/redevelopment project fund and 
it was felt the FISH project could get pulled from that. She said it could be pulled from another fund but it was 
important to remember there isn’t extra money anywhere.  

 

MOTION:   Rierson/McKinney moved to approve a $700 donation to the Ford Family Foundation 
Project from an area selected by the City Manager. Motion carried ( 7 Yes/ 0 No) 
 

 
XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Executive session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) Real Property Transactions and (h) Rights and Duties regarding 
litigation to be filed. The Council entered executive session at 8:40 p.m. The Council exited the first executive 
session at 9:32 p.m. 

 
The Council entered executive session pursuant to ORS 285C.145 (4) regarding an Enterprise Zone Application 
at 9:35 p.m. The Council exited the second executive session at 9:56 p.m. 

 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 6 



 

 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 6, 2014)  Page 6 of 6 

The Council entered open session at 9:57 p.m. 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:57 p.m.  
 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 20th day of October, 2014. 
 

    _______________________________ 
     Sue Ryan, Interim City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this ______ day of October, 2014. 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 7 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 8 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 9 

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 10 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 11 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 12 

ryan
Typewriter
This page left blank intentionally

ryan
Typewriter



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3164 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: Month Day, Year 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2014-3164 

 SUBJECT:  Authorize the City Manager to approve 
the replacement lease purchase of one (1) new 2014 

Chevrolet Caprice police patrol vehicle for the 

Newberg-Dundee Police Department

  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Ross Schultz 
Dept.: Police 
File No.: no 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2014-3164 authorizing the City Manager to approve the lease purchase of one (1) 

new 2014 Chevrolet Caprice Police Package vehicle from U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and 

Financing, Inc.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg is a member of the Oregon Department of Administrative Services Cooperative 
(ORCPP). Under this cooperative, the State of Oregon bid for police cars is currently awarded to 
Hubbard Chevrolet, Hubbard; Ron Tonkin Chevrolet, Portland; and Carlson Chevrolet, Sandy. Due to 
proximity, the Police Department and City of Newberg chooses to purchase the vehicle from Hubbard 
Chevrolet under the State bid. Hubbard Chevrolet will sell the vehicle for a base price of $25,257 and  
U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and Financing, Inc. will finance the car and the additions required to 
convert it into a police vehicle. STAR CARS LLC will add police interior modifications at a cost of 
$8,093 and Sirennet will upgrade the electronics at a cost of $3,910. This will bring the total of the lease 
amount from U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and Financing, Inc. to $37,260.  
 
As part of this lease U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and Financing, Inc. requires the attached 
authorizing resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Lease purchase will be made via an equipment lease with U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and 
Financing, Inc. at a rate of 3.35% annually for three (3) years with a $1.00 buyout at the end of the lease. 
U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and Financing, Inc. is the City of Newberg’s primary bank. The 
purchase price for the vehicle is $37,260 with an estimated total interest cost of $1,236 and a $1.00 
buyout. The total cost to the City will be $38,496. Payments to be made in three (3) installments of 
$12,832; the first payment due upon acceptance of the vehicle and the balance to be paid in two (2) 
annual payments in the next two fiscal years. This replacement vehicle has been budgeted in account 
number 32-2110-610000.  
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): 
 
Replacing aging police vehicles with excessive mileage and /or engine hours is imperative to the 
efficient use of vehicle maintenance funds by reducing maintenance.  

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 13 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3164 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3164 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE THE 

LEASE PURCHASE OF ONE REPLACEMENT VEHICLE FOR THE NEWBERG-
DUNDEE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND REIMBURSE ITSELF FROM THE 

PROCEEDS OF A TAX-EXEMPT FINANCING 
 

 
RECITALS: 

 
  

1. The Newberg-Dundee Police Department is a subdivision of the City of Newberg, a 
Municipal Corporation in the State of Oregon. 

2. The Newberg –Dundee Police Department has needs to replace a vehicle in their fleet. 
3. The City of Newberg has purchased a replacement vehicle in the amount of $37,260. 
4. The City of Newberg has advanced funds to cover this amount.  
5. The City of Newberg has determined that the money previously advanced no more than 

60 days prior to this date hereof and monies to be advanced on and after the date hereof 
to pay the Expenditures are available only for a temporary period and it is necessary to 
reimburse the City for Expenditures from the proceeds of a tax-exempt obligation Issued 
by U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and Financing, Inc. (The Issuer).  
 

 
The City of Newberg Resolves as follows: 

  
1. The Board hereby declares the Issuer’s intent to reimburse the City with the proceeds of 

the Obligations for the Expenditures with respect to the vehicle purchased, which date is 
no more than 60 days prior to the date hereof. 

2. The Issuer reasonably expects on the date hereof that it will reimburse the Expenditures 
with the proceeds of the Obligations. 

3. The Issuer will make a reimbursement allocation, which is a written allocation  
by the Issuer that evidences the Issuer’s use of proceeds of the Obligations to The City of 
Newberg. 

4. The City of Newberg City Council approves the City Manager signing appropriate 
documentation to effect this Recital; 
 

 
 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this                

 _______________________________ 
 Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

day of  October, 2014.
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 14 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3167 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: October 20, 2014 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2014-3167 

SUBJECT:  Adopt Resolution No. 2014-3167, 
adopting the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Mary Newell, Support Services Manager 
Dept.: Police Department 
File No.:  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2014-3167 adopting the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
The City of Newberg, by Resolution 2009-2871, adopted the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan on October 8, 2009.  The City of Newberg’s options for reducing the overall 
damage and impact from natural hazards are outlined within this plan.  Per Section 8, PLAN 
MAINTENANCE, the Hazard Mitigation Plan is to be updated every five years in cooperation with the 
Yamhill County Emergency Manager’s office.   
 
The Yamhill County Emergency Manager hired the contractor, Oregon Partnership for Disaster 
Resilience, to facilitate updating the Hazard Mitigation Plan in order to maintain compliance and ensure 
eligibility for any related FEMA grants. All Yamhill County stakeholders were invited to participate in 
scheduled workshops to update the plan. Three meetings were scheduled, beginning with the kickoff on 
February 26, 2014, followed by workshops on April 9 and May 21, 2014. Items addressed at these 
meetings were infrastructure, development/land use issues and general threats, hazards and 
vulnerabilities in Yamhill County and its communities. Recent hazards were identified, mitigation 
actions within jurisdictions were discussed and how Yamhill County aligns with the eight State of 
Oregon Natural Hazard Mitigation goals. 
 
A team comprised of Brittney Jeffries, Mary Newell, Steve Olson, and Jay Harris was assigned to 
represent the City of Newberg and work through and update components of the plan relating to the City 
of Newberg.   
 
Yamhill County Emergency Management distributed information and solicited public comments on the 
process at presentations and public events held within the county, including the City of Newberg.   
Information and requests for public comment was posted on the City of Newberg website and Facebook 
page.  Included on Facebook was a link to a survey developed by Yamhill County Emergency 
Management designed to solicit public comment from citizens and business throughout Yamhill County. 
Following the extended public comment deadline of July 10, 2014, Oregon Partnership for Disaster 
Resilience prepared the final draft of the update for submission to Oregon Emergency Management and 
FEMA. 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 15 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3167 PAGE 2 

 
The Office of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region X, have 
reviewed the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and on September 12, 2014, 
preapproved it contingent upon adoption by participating governments and entities. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Delays have caused the county and participating jurisdictions to be out of 
compliance for an updated Hazard Mitigation Plan, having missed the formal FEMA deadline of July 1, 
2014. County and jurisdictions will remain out of compliance for an updated Hazard Mitigation Plan 
until there is an official FEMA final approval. Adoption of this resolution is required to ensure eligibility 
for FEMA grants in the event of a major natural disaster or preemptively programmed project. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): 
 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 16 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3167 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3167 

 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE YAMHILL COUNTY MULTI-
JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN  

 

 
RECITALS: 
 
1. The City of Newberg is vulnerable to natural hazards which may result in loss of life and 

property, disruption of commerce and governmental services, and create public expenditures for 
protection and relief. 

 
2. The City of Newberg, together with Yamhill County Emergency Management and other 

governmental agencies within Yamhill County, worked together to update the Yamhill County 
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan,  first adopted by Resolution No. 2009-2871 on  
October 8, 2009, and which requires an update every five years. 

 
3. In order for local property owners to participate in FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant 

programs, it is required that the natural Hazards Mitigation Plan be adopted. 
 
4. The Hazard Mitigation Plan has been reviewed by community residents, business owners, and 

federal, state and local agencies, and has been revised to reflect their concerns. 
 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City of Newberg recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people, property and 

infrastructure within our community; and 
 
2. Undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to people, property and 

infrastructure from future hazard occurrences; and 
 

3. An adopted natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of future funding for 
mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant programs; and 
 

4. The City of Newberg has fully participated in the FEMA prescribed mitigation planning process 
to update the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, which has 
established a comprehensive, coordinated planning process to eliminate or minimize these 
vulnerabilities; and 
 

5. The City of Newberg has completed a city-specific Addendum, attached as “Exhibit A” and by 
this reference incorporated, that is contained within the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan; and; 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 17 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3167 PAGE 2 

 
6. The City of Newberg Addendum identifies natural hazard risks and prioritizes a number of 

proposed actions and programs needed to mitigate the vulnerabilities of the City of Newberg to 
the impacts of future disasters within the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan; and 
 

7. These proposed projects and programs are incorporated into the Yamhill County Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan that has been prepared and promulgated for consideration 
and implementation by the cities of Yamhill County; and 
 

8. The Office of  Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region X 
officials have reviewed the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and 
pre-approved it (dated September 12, 2014) contingent upon this official adoption of the 
participating governments and entities; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Newberg adopts the Yamhill County 
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official plan; and 
 
BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Newberg will submit this Adoption Resolution to the 
Oregon Office of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region X 
officials to enable final approval of the Yamhill County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: October 21, 2014. 

 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 20th day of October, 2014. 

 
 

 _______________________________ 
Sue Ryan, City Recorder

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this ______ day of October, 2014. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 18 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 19 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 20 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 21 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 22 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 23 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 24 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 25 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 26 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 27 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 28 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 29 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 30 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 31 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 32 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 33 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 34 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 35 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 36 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 37 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 38 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 39 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 40 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 41 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 42 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 43 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 44 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 45 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 46 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 47 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 48 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 49 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 50 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 51 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 52 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 53 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Ato Resolution No. 2014-3167



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 54 

ryan
Typewriter
This page left blank intentionally



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2014-0035 PAGE 1 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: October 20, 2014 

Order   XX    Ordinance     Resolution        Motion        Information ___ 
No. 2014-0035 No. No. 

SUBJECT:  An Order establishing a Public Safety 
Fee (PSF) in the amount of two dollars ($2.00) per 
residential meter equivalency (RME) per month for 
the purpose of funding an two communications 
officer positions. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Order: For Facts: Chief Brian Casey 
For Document Questions: Truman A. Stone  
Dept.: Newberg-Dundee 9-1-1 Police Department 
with cooperation from the City Attorney’s Office 

 

HEARING TYPE: LEGISLATIVE QUASI-JUDICIAL NOT APPLICABLE 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Order No. 2014-0035 the Public Safety Fee (PSF) to fund an existing and new communications 
officer position. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The Newberg-Dundee 9-1-1 (Communications) is integral part of public safety. It is funded primarily by 
property taxes and the 9-1-1 fees collected by the State of Oregon on monthly telephones bills. (The 9-1-1 
fee collected by the State is a $0.75 tax imposed on any circuit or device capable of accessing the 9-1-1 
network and is collected by communications providers offering such services.) Communications provides 
dispatching services for Newberg-Dundee Police and Newberg Fire and EMS; plus contractual services to 
the Newberg Rural Fire District, Dundee Fire District, and Dundee Rural Fire District.  Staff is proposing a 
$2.00 PSF to fund two (2) communications officers. A workload study was done in 2010 that recommended 
that four (4) communication officers be added to the department. Over the last three years, overtime costs 
have equated to the cost of one communications officer.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The PSF would be implemented by November 1, 2014. The PSF is recommended at $2.00 per RME per 
month. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): 
 
Through this funding, the city would stabilize funding for one existing communications officer, and 
allow the hiring of an additional communications officer on a permanent basis. Communication services 
are essential services that are a part of the police department allowing the city to better meet its 
obligation to provide such services. It is the city’s obligation to ensure that 9-1-1 calls are answered and 
appropriate resources are dispatched immediately. 
 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 55 



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2014-0035 PAGE 1 
 

 

ORDER NO. 2014-0035 

 
 

AN ORDER ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC SAFETY FEE (PSF) IN THE 

AMOUNT OF TWO ($2.00) DOLLARS PER RESIDENTIAL METER 

EQUIVALENCY (RME) PER MONTH FOR THE PURPOSE OF FUNDING 

TWO COMMUNICATIONS OFFICER POSITIONS 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The city has had a long-standing need for additional communications officers.  Both a Staffing Study 

conducted in 2010 and an ad hoc report from Oregon Emergency Management, prepared July 2014, 
indicates Newberg-Dundee 9-1-1 is significantly understaffed when compared to other PSAPs (Public 
Safety Answering Point) in Oregon of comparative size.   

 
2. To provide an adequate level of 9-1-1 services, it is necessary to provide stabilized funding for an 

existing communications officer and to hire an additional communications officer. 
 
3. Call volume, population, activities, and field personnel have increased over time while staffing of the 

dispatch center has remained stagnant. 
 

4. No new personnel have been added to the dispatch center since 2005. 
 
5. The City Council adopted Ordinance 2009-2714, which authorized the establishment of a public safety 

fee to fund police and fire services.  The ordinance provided a process for adopting a public safety fee.  
The ordinance is hereby attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference. 

 
6. Support Services Manager, Mary Newell, provided a Memorandum/Administrative Report of the 

historical background and necessity of increasing staffing in the 9-1-1 dispatch center which is hereby 
attached as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference. 

 
7. The National Fire Protection Association requires two dispatchers on duty or in the operations room at 

all times (NFPA 1221, Operations, § Staffing 7.3.2*, 2013 Ed.). 
 

8. The city of Newberg Budget Committee and City Council adopted FY 14/15 budget based in part on 
adoption of this PSF.  

 
9. In accordance with the process established by ordinance, the City Council conducted on October 20, 

2014, at the regular scheduled meeting, a public hearing to determine if the request for the PSF meets the 
criteria as provided for in the Newberg Code.  The format for that hearing is marked as Exhibit C, which 
is attached and incorporated by reference.  The criteria for establishing the PSF is listed in Exhibit A, 
Section 5 which has been codified in Section 36.37 of the Newberg Municipal Code, also contained in 
Exhibit A. 

 
10. The council has taken into consideration the facts and information presented to them, as well as the 

testimony presented during the October 20th public hearing. 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 56 



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2014-0035 PAGE 2 
 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Recitals:  The recitals are hereby adopted by the city council and considered facts in the deliberation. 
 
2. Public Safety Fee (PSF):  A PSF increase is hereby established and authorized to be charged as 

follows: 
 

a. Amount: Two ($2.00) dollars per residential meter equivalency (RME) per month 
will be charged on all water meters within the city of Newberg according to the following 
based on the Sixth Edition of the American Water Works Association (AWWA) Manual 
of Water Supply Practices (M1 Manual), table VI.2-5, Meter Equivalencies: 
 

Meter Size 
5/8” or ¾” 

1” 
1 ¼” 
1 ½” 
2” 
3” 
4” 
6” 
8” 
10” 
12” 

 

Meter Equivalent 
1.0 
2.5 
3.5 
5.0 
8.0 
16.0 
25.0 
50.0 
80.0 
210.0 
265.0 

 
b. The amount of the fee shall be adjusted on July 1, 2015, and annually thereafter, and 
shall increase or decrease in a percentage amount equivalent to the Portland CPI-U for 
the prior calendar year, as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. 
 
c. Responsible Party: The person(s), firms, corporation, or entity (hereinafter referred to 
as “person”) responsible for the water utility charge will be responsible for the PSF. If 
there is no water service to the developed property, the person with the right to occupy 
the developed property will be responsible for the PSF. 
 
d. Implementation: The PSF will be implemented and charged through the November 
2014 water utility bill. However, the city manager (CM) has the authority to delay 
implementation if the CM deems it necessary, but the PSF will be implemented as soon 
as possible if delayed after the November billing. 
 
e. Expenditures: The revenue collected from the PSF will be used to stabilize the 
funding of the existing communications officer, and fund an additional communications 
officer, including all necessary expenses. 
 
f. PSF Designation:  The PSF will be referred to as Communications Officer Public 
Safety Fee (COPSF). 

 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 57 



City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2014-0035 PAGE 2 
 

3. Administrative Report: The administration has presented to the city council an administrative report 
recommending an amount and the implementation of the PSF. The city council adopts the 
administration report, which is attached as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference. 

 
4. Hearing Format: Exhibit C is the hearing format to be used for this Order.  
 
5. Findings of Fact: The city council adopts the Findings of Fact as set forth in Exhibit D, which is 

hereby attached and by this reference incorporated. The Findings of Fact addresses the criteria for 
establishing the PSF. The council finds that the criteria for establishing the PSF has been met and 
satisfied. 

 
6. Administration: Under the authority of the CM, city administration is hereby delegated the authority 

to administer the PSF, including charging, collecting, and implementing the PSF. The CM is hereby 
delegated all necessary authority for implementation and administration of the PSF. Furthermore, the 
CM is delegated the authority to do all necessary acts; enter into all necessary agreements; and 
execute any other necessary documents for the implementation and collection of the PSF. This 
authority is in addition to the authority given to the administration under Newberg Code provision § 
36.36 entitled, “Administration and Collection.” Furthermore, additional conditions for 
implementation and collection are presented in Exhibit E, which is hereby attached and by this 
reference incorporated. The authorized conditions are to be implemented by the administration.  

 
 

7. Appeal: Any dispute, claim, or other disagreement concerning the implementation, charges, and 
collection of the PSF including but not limited to determination of the number of RME’s; the amount 
of the PSF to be charged; the responsible party; and settlement of disputed claims will initially be 
made by the finance director. Appeal of this decision will be to the city manager. The city manager’s 
decision will be final. 

 
 
 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this order is the day after the adoption date, which is: October 21, 2014. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 20th day of October, 2014.        
 
 

 _______________________________ 
Sue Ryan, City Recorder

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 23rd day of October 2014. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 58 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 59 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 60 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 61 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 62 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 63 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 1 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

Date:  August 21, 2014 
To:    Mayor and City Council    
 
Facts:   Police Chief Brian Casey 
Report Author:  Truman A. Stone, City Attorney 
 
 

Public Safety Fee for Police Services 
 
Recommending a Public Safety Fee (PSF) for a Division of Police Services  

Pursuant to Code Provisions 3.30.10 – 3.30.030. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Implement a Communications Officer Public Safety Fee 
(“COPSF”) effective November 1, 2014 in the amount of two dollars ($2) per 
month per residential meter equivalent (“RME”).  The PSF is to be paid by the 
party paying the City’s water utility charges or person(s) having the right to 
occupy the developed property. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Newberg’s 9-1-1 Communications Center, a division of the Newberg-
Dundee Police Department, has a need for up to four additional communications 
officers. While call volume, population, field personnel, and dispatch activities 
have increased over time, staffing of the dispatch center has remained stagnant. 
No additional personnel have been added since 2005. The City is relying on 
overtime and records personnel to staff the dispatch center. 
 
One additional communications officer position has been authorized by the City 
Council, which has recognized the need for a staffing increase, but sufficient 
revenue is not available. Present revenue sources are not sufficient to meet the 
need, and the trends affecting the general fund could result in staffing cuts in the 
Communications Center.  
 
The staffing shortage in the dispatch center impacts the ability of the Public 
Safety Answering Point (PSAP) to function efficiently, potentially affecting citizen, 
officer, and firefighter safety. Less than two communications officers on duty at 
any given time adversely affects the City of Newberg Fire Department’s 
insurance rating.   
 
It is the City’s obligation to ensure that 9-1-1 calls are answered and appropriate 
resources are dispatched immediately. It is also the City’s obligation to provide 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 64 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 2 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

adequate dispatch and radio support for police, fire, and EMS responders while 
in the field. 
 
The proposal is to fund one existing and one new communications officer 
position by means of the public safety fee. This will increase the total number of 
communications officers from nine to ten.  
 
The proposed amount of the fee is two dollars ($2) per RME per month. By using 
the fee method, those occupants and users of developed properties will pay their 
fair share for the police services needed. 
 
The City will be able to better provide professional, responsive, and high quality 
dispatching services. It is recommended that the Council pass Order No. 2014-
0035 providing for the COPSF.  
 
I.  STATEMENT OF FACTS:  Police Chief Casey has studied the criteria and 
comparison factors used to determine the necessary staffing of communications 
officers to deliver quality dispatch services, pursuant to City Code provisions 
3.30.010 – 3.30.030 as follows.  
 
A. Specific purpose or use of fee increase:   
The Newberg-Dundee 9-1-1 Communications Center needs four additional 
communications officers to provide 24-hour dispatching services to the 
communities of Newberg, Dundee, and the surrounding fire and EMS dispatch 
service area.  Currently, nine communications officers staff the dispatch center, 
minimally covering the 42 weekly, 8-hour shifts, required to maintain year round 
shift coverage.  Administration has relied on overtime and records personnel to 
cover any absence due to illness, vacation, training, or position vacancy.  The 
dispatch supervisor works daily shifts as a communication officer, pulling him/her 
from their primary supervisory duties.  When working dispatch, the records 
person cannot complete assigned records and evidence duties.  Long overtime 
hours cause communications officers to suffer from fatigue and stress, when they 
should be operating at optimal capacity.  This situation impacts their ability to 
function efficiently, potentially negatively affecting citizen, officer, and firefighter 
safety.   
 
The City proposes funding these positions by implementing the COPSF. This will 
fund one existing and one new communications officer position bringing the 9-1-1 
communications staff to a total of 10 communications officers. Through Chief 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 65 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 3 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

Casey’s research, the need for the additional communications officer positions 
has been established.  
 
 
B. Estimated revenue the PSF would raise for the City of Newberg:  
Creating a fee to fund two communications officers will provide a stable funding 
source for this critical need. 
 
City staff proposes a two dollar ($2) per month per residential meter equivalent 
(RME) within the City of Newberg. An RME is a number/point system related to 
the size of the water meter servicing a property and its relation to an average 
single-family residential meter. The number of RMEs consigned to different users 
is based on the size of the meter.  
 
The City has legal authority to establish an appropriate fee and designate a class 
of persons to be responsible for paying such fee.  The revenue projections for the 
COPSF are as follows1: 
 
Communications

Budget  (July - June)   REVENUES

 Annual Budget based on 

$2/RME 

2014-15 192,981$                                

2015-16 203,111$                                

2016-17 205,218$                                

2017-18 207,315$                                

Communications

Budget  (July - June)   EXPENSES

 Annual Budget based on 

$2/RME Contingency

2014-15 169,376$                                23,605$                 

2015-16 184,225$                                18,886$                 

2016-17 188,892$                                16,326$                 

2017-18 197,817$                                9,498$                    

                                                 
1 This chart shows the adopted budget.  Delay in implementing this PSF will decrease 
both the revenues and expenses for 2014-15. 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 66 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 4 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
The COPSF will be implemented and assessed through monthly water utility 
billing statements with an anticipated start date of November 2014. The city 
manager is delegated the authority to delay the implementation of the COPSF for 
administrative necessities.   
 
Revenue derived from the COPSF will pay for one existing and one new 
communications officer, for a total of two positions. 
 
The COPSF will also be used for expenditures necessary or desirable in 
connection with those positions. 
 
 
C.  Specific amount of the PSF and the method of determining the 

amount of the PSF:  
The proposed COPSF is two dollars ($2) per month per residential meter 
equivalent (“RME”). The COPSF is to be paid by the party paying the City’s water 
utility charges or person(s) having the right to occupy the developed property.   
 
The Interim City Manager presented a balanced budget to the 2014-2015 City 
Budget Committee, which included the proposed PSF.  The original proposal 
also included $0.66 cents to supplement the existing police officer PSF. The 
$0.66 has been pulled from consideration and is not a part of this report.  
 
To determine the fee amount for the COPSF, City staff determined the costs of a 
communications officer, including benefit rollups, and projected estimated costs 
over a four-year period.  The proposed $2 fee will fund two positions, plus 
maintain a small contingency balance.  Communications Officers cost less than a 
police officer.  Unlike the current police officer PSF (which includes costs 
associated with vehicles, uniforms, training and supplies) no costs have been 
included for the COPSF to offset the cost of computers, headsets, training or 
uniform expenses. 
 
The dire need for additional communications officers and funding options were 
discussed during the spring 2014-2015 Budget Committee hearings. Due to 
serious budget constraints, Budget Committee members were divided on 
whether or not to support adding up to four additional communications officer 
positions, according to one needs study.  The Budget Committee settled on one 
additional communication officer. 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 67 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 5 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

The Budget Committee approved the proposed budget, with the PSF as 
proposed, recognizing the PSF would be dependent upon public hearing and 
Council approval required by city code. On June 19, 2014, the Council adopted 
the proposed budget as approved by the Budget Committee and as adjusted by 
City Council. 
 
D. Citizens who would be charged the PSF: 
All person or persons, including businesses, corporations, non-profits, and/or any 
other entity paying the City for water utility charges, will pay the COPSF. If the 
property is developed, but there is no utility service to the property, or if water 
services are discontinued, the COPSF will be paid by the person(s) authorized to 
occupy the developed property.   

 
The proposed COPSF is two dollars ($2) per RME per month. Larger water 
meters generally mean more occupants. The smallest meter is ¾ inch and is 
equal to one RME.  The largest potential meter is 10 inches, with a RME of 115. 
Most current users have a meter between between ¾ inch (1 RME) and 4 inches 
(25 RME). Irrigation meters such as Water districts and Springs customers 
outside the city limits do not pay a fee. 
 
The assessment and collection of the COPSF will occur through the utility billing 
system in accordance with the proposed order (Order No. 2014-0035) of the 
Council. 
 
E. Reporting:    
The City administration will account for all revenue received pursuant to the 
COPSF. City administration will track all expenditures made with funds collected 
from the COPSF. A report showing revenue and expenditures from the COPSF 
will be submitted to the Council with the annual budget. The report will be 
reviewed and approved by the Council.  
 
II. CRITERIA:  The criteria for establishing a PSF has been adopted by 
Ordinance 2009-2714 and outlined in the Newberg Code in Sections 36.37. (See 
Exhibit A to the Order.) This report presents the facts that are addressed in the 
criteria. The criteria and facts are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 68 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 6 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

A. The Need for Services:   
Newberg-Dundee Communications Center is the PSAP for all emergency 9-1-1 
calls in east Yamhill County. Newberg-Dundee Communications provides 
dispatching services for Newberg-Dundee Police; Newberg Fire and EMS; 
Newberg Fire District; Dundee Fire; and Dundee Fire District. Among their many 
duties, communications officers provide pre-arrival instructions, assist callers with 
CPR and/or first aid, obtain landmarks to guide officers or firefighters, and update 
and transmit new information. Communications officers are the first public safety 
responders as they screen and dispatch all emergency calls for service, 
providing ongoing support to police, fire and EMS field operations. 
 
Newberg-Dundee Communications also answers all business calls for the 
Newberg-Dundee Police Department, and answers after hour emergency calls 
for the Newberg and Dundee Public Works Departments. Communications 
officers provide records support for Newberg-Dundee Police Department through 
citation entry, warrant verification, database search/query, connecting patrol and 
probation with officers in the field, tracking parole and probation home visits, 
monitoring alarms of city buildings, and monitoring holding cells and building 
security cameras.  
 
While call volume, population, activities, and field personnel have increased over 
time, staffing of the dispatch center has remained stagnant. No new personnel 
have been added to the dispatch center since 2005. As some personnel left, they 
were offered an option to work part-time to supplement staffing whenever 
possible, taking advantage of their certification and training. This part-time status 
helped alleviate some of the overtime incurred when the center was less than 
fully staffed. However, even when fully staffed with budgeted FTEs, the 
Newberg-Dundee 9-1-1 Communications Center is understaffed to handle the 
workload 24 hours per day, 365 days of the year. 
 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 69 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 7 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
 
Between 1993 and 2014, both fire and police personnel have experienced growth 
in staffing. This means communications officers’ workload has increased as they 
are tracking more field personnel, additional patrol units, firefighting and EMS 
apparatus, and experience a higher incidence of radio traffic.   
 
The National Fire Protection Association requires two dispatchers on duty or in 
the operations room at all times (NFPA 1221, Operations, § Staffing 7.3.2*, 2013 
Ed.). The graph below represents staffing as it existed in 2008-2009. During this 
period and prior, frequently only one dispatcher worked the graveyard shift.  
Currently, there are occasions where the center cannot meet this requirement 
due to lack of available personnel, creating a situation that could negatively affect 
the insurance rating for Newberg Fire Department. 
 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 70 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 8 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
 
 
As presented to the 2014-2015 budget committee, with nine (9) FTE, Newberg-
Dundee 9-1-1 Communications Center is short staffed to meet current needs, 
resulting in excessive overtime. Excessive reliance on overtime is an indication 
that management is using a reactive approach rather than a proactive approach 
to handling the workload.  
 
Too much overtime leads to stress, employee burnout, interpersonal conflict 
within the workplace, frequent schedule conflicts with family events outside of 
usual shift schedules, employee dissatisfaction with the agency and 
management, and illness. Chronic stress adds to employee fatigue. “Even 
though the position is not a physically demanding job, it is an extremely mentally 
demanding job which takes its physical toll on a dispatcher every day. 
Exhaustion is derived when combining the ‘mental’ and when exposed to chronic 
stress.” (APCO ProCHRT, Aug 2011, pg 32). Complete report may be found at 
https://www.apcointl.org/resources.html. 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 71 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 9 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

Since 2011, funds paid to cover shifts were equivalent to the cost of one full-time 
dispatcher, or nearly so. The total required overtime costs were mitigated by 
coverage hours worked by Records at straight time.  If overtime were used to fill 
the staffing gap, overtime costs would have been higher.  

 
“The dispatch center that is constantly working at or near capacity makes it 
difficult to respond to and manage the unexpected occurrence, whether that 
occurrence is a disaster or merely a sudden increase in call volume” (APCO 
Project Retains, Aug 2005). APCO Project Retains may be found at 
https://www.apcointl.org/resources.html. 
 
Newberg-Dundee 9-1-1 has experienced call overload during incidents such as 
ice and snowstorms, wind storms, motor vehicle crashes, and earthquake. 
During a large-scale emergency, the dispatch center will not be adequately 
staffed.  
 

    2011   2012   2013 
       
Overtime Hrs 
Worked  

             
1,438.00   

             
2,008.50                1,771.50  

Avg OT / month   
                  

33.04   
                  

35.70                     36.52  

Yearly OT Cost  
          

$47,511.52   
          

$71,703.45            $64,695.18  
          
           
Dispatch Hours 
Covered by 
Records Person  

                
318.50   

                
105.50                   564.00  

Reg Pay Hours  
                  

22.03   
                  

22.66                     23.18  

 Reg Pay Costs  
             

$7,016.56   
             

$2,390.63             $13,073.52  
           

Total OT  
          

$54,528.08   
          

$74,094.08            $ 77,768.70  

         
Cost of 1 FTE at 
CO1F   $76,941.00    

          
$76,941.00             $ 77,251.00  

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 72 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 10 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

In preparation for the 2010-2011 budget, an internal staffing and workload 
evaluation was conducted using 2007-2009 payroll, phone, and CAD data.   
 
This study, Minimum Staffing Available Hours, identified the number of 
communications officers required to cover the dispatch center 24-hours per day, 
working three eight hour shifts, based on “available hours.” This study averaged 
the leave hours used by employees over a three-year period, identifying the 
actual number of available hours required to cover the shift. For this staffing 
model, we utilized payroll data from 2007-2009 to tally and then average hours 
worked; and vacation, comp, holiday, and sick time used. Lunches and breaks 
were deducted from available hours. Twelve hours of training is the minimum 
required to maintain telecommunicator and EMD certification. Trainee hours were 
not included in computations because a trainee is unable to work independently. 
 

 
This study recommended that four (4) communications officers are needed 
(rounded up) per shift at 1573 available hours. It would take more than 1941 
available hours to reduce the number to three (3) FTEs per shift.   
 
Additionally, there are several large projects and changes on the horizon which 
will have a major impact on dispatch staff, as well as police and fire users. It is 
preferable that we hire to resolve the current staffing shortage, and ‘pre-staff’ in 
anticipation of possible retirements before these major change(s) occur. This will 
allow a smoother, safer transition, allowing the city to meet the needs of 
Newberg’s citizens, public safety users, and staff.  

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 73 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 11 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
 

B. Comparison of resources to provide such services by examining the 
following: 
 
1. Comparison with resources available in similar communities:   
There is  limited  information  when  reviewing comparisons  to  other  dispatch 
centers. This is due to the diversity of services offered, size, and governance. 

Staff turned to the State of Oregon for supporting comparison documentation. In 
the  State  of  Oregon,  the  9-1-1  program  was  established  by  the  1981  Oregon 
Legislature  (ORS  403.100  – 403.380)  with  the  mission  to  ensure  seamless 
operation  of  the  statewide  Enhanced  9-1-1  system.  Oregon  Emergency 
Management (OEM) administers the 9-1-1 program for the State of Oregon. 

OEM  requires  an  annual  financial  report  be  filed  by  each  PSAP  to  track  actual 
costs incurred each fiscal year; required by ORS 403.120. To compare resources 
within the State of Oregon, staff contacted OEM for summary data for PSAPs of 
similar  size.  In  July  2014,  OEM  developed  an  ad  hoc  report,  compiling  staffing 
and  call  data  for  those  dispatch  centers  having  three  9-1-1  phone  workstations 
as does Newberg-Dundee 9-1-1.  That report is attached as Attachment 1 to this 
Administrative  Report and  by  this  reference  incorporated.  Of  the  10  PSAPS  of 
similar  size,  four  agencies  share  a  similar  total  telephone  call  volume:   Baker 
County,  Malheur  County,  Tillamook,  and  Union  County.  Of  the four  PSAPs  with 
similar total call volume, Baker and Malheur counties staffed fewer FTEs than 
Newberg
(Attachment 1). 

The City of Newberg has studied consolidation opportunities with  other dispatch 
centers on many occasions,  none of  which  have  been  successful. Two  of  those 
consolidation  studies  prepared  by  outside  consultants  provided  staffing 
recommendations, as summarized below:

 Consolidation:  City of Newberg and NORCOM, November 6, 1998. 
 Prepared by:  J. N. Hartsock Project Management 
 Recommendation:  Hartsock indicated Newberg’s 8 dispatchers in 1998 
 were  sufficient  for  the  workload  at  that  time.  Hartsock  projected  9.1 
 dispatchers  would  be  needed  by  Newberg  in  2006  based  on  the 
 projected growth factor of 2.75% applied to the 1998 workload. 

 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 74 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 12 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
 
Consolidation: Yamhill County Communications Agency (YCOM) and 
Newberg 
Prepared by:  Emergency Services Consulting Group, June 2000 
 
Recommendation: Recommendation was “staffing analysis based on 
workload indicates that Newberg has a staffing shortfall of two (2) full-
time positions” as it related to the current/existing staffing of eight (8) 
dispatchers. Further, Emergency Services Consulting Group’s five (5) 
year projection said Newberg would need 10 dispatchers in 2005. 

 
Today, in 2014, at nine (9) FTE, Newberg-Dundee 9-1-1 has less staff than the 
two independent consultants projected Newberg would need by 2006 
(Attachment 2a & 2b). 
 
2. Comparison with resources used to provide services, such as 

number of police officers or firefighters per capita as shown through 
nationally recognized service studies: 

 
There is a lack of 9-1-1 center comparison information as it pertains to 
standardized staffing calculations for dispatch centers. 

 
APCO (Association of Public Safety Communications Officials) offers some 
guidance through a variety of dispatching related reports and papers, such as 
their 2005 guide, “APCO PROJECT RETAINS Staffing and Retention in Public 
Safety Communication Centers.”    

 
Staff prepared a staffing analysis, using The APCO Project RETAINS Effective 
Practices Guide and Staffing Workbook. Developed by APCO for dispatch 
managers to estimate appropriate staffing levels for the work in their centers and 
to calculate turnover and retention rates, staff utilized the work sheets and tools 
to determine that four (4) additional dispatchers were required to be fully staffed 
without relying on a records person and supervisor for shift coverage 
(Attachment 3). Fewer FTEs could be possible should the communications 
center continue to require the supervisor to work shifts and staff with the records 
person. 
 
2006 - 2009 data was used in this study. Data was pulled from the Vesta Pallas 
9-1-1 phone system to obtain call statistics for business and 9-1-1 phone lines, 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 75 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 13 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

and an average call processing time was calculated. Payroll data was gathered 
to calculate total hours that each dispatcher is available to answer calls. Not 
included in available console time was an average of vacation, holiday, sick, 
personal leave, and lunch/breaks used by FTEs. The turnover rate was 
calculated using payroll data. 

 
This study recommended the Newberg-Dundee Communications Center would 
require 11.5 FTE if the schedule included the Records-Evidence Tech and 
Dispatch Supervisor in the work schedule. 12.6 FTE would be required if the 
Records-Evidence Tech and Dispatch Supervisor were removed from the 
schedule. 
 
3. Comparison of statistics showing the calls for services or incidents 

that require services from year to year to determine if the need for 
services has increased or decreased. 
 

Below is a chart for telephone calls from 2005-2014, CAD (computer aided 
dispatch) calls for service resulting in a computer generated report, and 
population. Population includes the cities of Newberg and Dundee, and the rural 
population within the PSAP coverage area.  
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 76 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 14 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
 
Total telephone call statistics were fairly stable with some peaks and valleys over 
the eight-year period, mainly due to technical changes in the phone system and 
how calls were calculated. Population increased slightly over the same period of 
time from 30,519 to 34,171. 9-1-1 phone activities requiring response from 
police, fire, EMS or other ranged from a high of 12,264 in 2005 to 10,406 in 2013.  
CAD calls for service, however, steadily increased from 25,479 in 2005 to 39,127 
in 2013.  This represents a 53.6% increase in eight years.  CAD calls best 
represent the actual workload of communication officers, since electronic 
communication is replacing telephone and radio communication. 
 
Daily, communications officers handle large numbers of 9-1-1 and business calls 
coming into the dispatch center. CAD activities include self-initiated activities by 
officers, in addition to the tracking of an individual’s phone request for a service 
by police, fire, EMS, or other. CAD activities do NOT include requests for an 
officer, records, or other miscellaneous information requests. The number of 
CAD activities is much higher than the total number of 9-1-1 calls received 
annually. CAD activities do include all responses sent as a result of a 9-1-1 call.  
In 2013, CAD activities averaged 107 per day or 35 per dispatch shift, which all 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 77 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 15 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

required some activity by a communications officer to help facilitate the activity of 
the responding agency. 
 
4. Any other recognized study or authoritative source showing 

comparison of resources needed with services to be delivered in the 
public safety area. 
 

In 2003, the National Emergency Number Association (NENA) employed a 
consultant to create models for funding and staffing communications centers. 
NENA is a professional organization focused on 9-1-1 policy, technology, 
operations and educational issues. NENA sets operational standards for the 9-1-
1 profession.   

 
Kimball & Associates performed the study to develop staffing and budget for 
agencies implementing Enhanced 9-1-1 services for primary PSAPs serving 
populations of fewer than 140,000. The methodology included the Rational 
Approach (theory to data source) and The Empirical Approach (observation). 
While the report met the minimum requirements of the contract, the limited 
number of completed surveys caused a modification of desired goals in that the 
influence of specific factors on call processing could not be validated to the 
degree intended by the study (Attachment 4).   
 
However, some general guidelines were collected from the report, supporting the 
request for additional staff. Findings from the Rational Approach concluded that 
“If call volume can be obtained, it provides a good approximation to the actual 
number of telecommunciators required” though a number was not identified 
(Kimball, Pg 35). The conclusion and recommendations from the Empirical 
Approach are reflected in Table 28 (Pg 58) of the report, stating 7 to 17 
dispatchers are needed for medium sized PSAPS (19,000 – 100,000 population) 
based on population alone (Pg 58). This provides support for 12 dispatchers 
based on analysis through the Project Retains workbook. The full text of the 
Kimball & Associates report is located at:  
http://www.nena.org/?page=psap_staffingguide&terms=staffing. 
 
5. Take into consideration the increase or decrease in population: 
 
The dispatch area for Newberg-Dundee Dispatch is approximately 100 square 
miles, covering the cities of Newberg and Dundee, and eastern rural Yamhill 
County. The Newberg Dundee Communications Center dispatch area has a 
steadily growing population.  

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 78 

http://www.nena.org/?page=psap_staffingguide&terms=staffing


    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 16 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
 

 
 
 
Per Portland State University, Population Studies, the PSAP dispatch area is 
forecasted to grow at a moderate to strong pace through 2035. Assuming a 6.4% 
growth in CAD calls as per the historical data, an increase in workload is 
expected as the population continues to increase.     
 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 79 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 17 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
 
 
 
6. A reasonable connection between those who need, use, or are likely 

to need or use the service, and those who are charged the fee. 
 
The group to be charged the PSF would be to those who occupy the developed 
property within the City of Newberg as determined by those responsible to pay 
for the utility services. Utility services provide a reasonably accurate method of 
determining which property is developed and which property is occupied.  
Currently, special districts do not pay the public safety fee. 
 
Some users outside the City have an escalating cost contract that accounts for 
the current and forecasted need for services.  
 
The City of Dundee pays for dispatch services through a contract with the City of 
Newberg. Resolution No. 2004-2539, provides that emergency communications 
services be adjusted by a percentage factor not to exceed five percent (5%) of 
the prior year’s charge or such other sum as may be agreed to between the City 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 80 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 18 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

and Dundee.  In fiscal year 2014, Dundee’s cost for communication services is 
$40,721.    
 
The Newberg Rural Fire District, which is funded through property taxes, funnels 
most of their property tax revenue to the City of Newberg, maintaining some for 
administrative costs.  NRFD does not pay a distinct amount for 9-1-1 
Communications.  
 
7. The amount of revenue needed to support the resources to provide 

the services. 
 
The amount of revenue needed to support the existing communications officer 
and provide an additional communications officer is recommended at $2.00 per 
RME per month. The amount of estimated revenues and expenditures to fund the 
positions are as follows: 
 
Communication Officers (2): 
The estimated revenues and expenses from the city’s budget documents are 
as follows: 
 
Communications 
 
Budget (July-June) REVENUES  Annual Budget based on $2/RME 
 
2014-15      $192,981 
 
 
2015-16      $203,111 
 
 
2016-17      $205,218 
 
 
2017-18      $207,315 
Communications 
 
Budget (July-June) REVENUES Annual Budget based on $2/RME Contingency 
 
2014-15     $169,376   $23,605 
 
 
2015-16     $184,225   $18,886 
 
 
2016-17     $188,892   $16,326 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 81 



    Exhibit B 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

Administrative Report 
 

 
City of Newberg  Page 19 of 19 
Administrative Report August 2014: Exhibit B to Order No. 2014-0035 
O:\Legal\Recorder\Orders\PSF Order Communications Officers\Exhibit B Administrative Report 2014_Draft 6.doc 

 

 
 
2017-18     $197,817   $9,498 

 
 
(C)     Any other Criteria: 
 
Legal Authority – The City has adopted an ordinance allowing the PSF and 
creating a process to ensure public input. This is within the legal authority of the 
City.  

 
Court Ruling – The legality of a PSF and the process for determining the group 
that is to be assessed the PSF has been reviewed by the Oregon courts in 
another similar situation. In that case, the City had enacted a “public safety 
surcharge” to be billed through the City water utility billing process. The City has 
used this situation as a model. The Supreme Court of Oregon ruled that the 
public safety surcharge was legal; the public safety surcharge is not a property 
tax; the City has the right to determine a class to charge; and that the class 
subject to the public safety surcharge was legally established by the City. [See 
Knapp v. City of Jacksonville, 342 Or. 268 (2007).] 
 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

The Newberg-Dundee Communications Center, a division of the Newberg-
Dundee 9-1-1 Police Department, is in need of additional communications 
officers in order to maintain a safe and reliable level of staffing to deliver 9-1-1 
answering and dispatch services. The city’s population has grown, calls for 
service have increased, and the number of users of dispatch services has risen 
over the last decade. The last FTE was added in 2005. 
 
It is the recommendation of the police chief and City administration that the City 
levy the Communications Officer Public Safety Fee (COPSF) in the amount of 
two (2) dollars per RME per month to raise the revenue to fund existing and 
additional communications officer positions. The City Budget Committee and the 
City Council have approved this request contingent on the revenue being 
available. The only method of obtaining the available revenue is through the 
COPSF. Code provisions allow for a COPSF to be imposed. The Council should 
impose the COPSF to continue to provide quality dispatch services to the 
community.      

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 82 



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 83 

ryan
Typewriter
Budget Attachments toAdministrative Report

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 84 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Budget Attachments toAdministrative Report



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 85 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Budget Attachments toAdministrative Report



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 86 

ryan
Typewriter
Budget Attachments toAdministrative Report

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 87 

ryan
Typewriter
Budget Attachments toAdministrative Report



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 88 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Budget Attachments toAdministrative Report

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 89 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Budget Attachments toAdministrative Report



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 90 

ryan
Typewriter
Budget Attachments toAdministrative Report



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 91 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 1to Administrative ReportPage 1 of 1



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 92 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2ato Administrative ReportPage 1 of 8

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 93 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2ato Administrative ReportPage 2 of 8

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 94 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2ato Administrative ReportPage 3 of 8



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 95 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2ato Administrative ReportPage 4 of 8



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 96 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2ato Administrative ReportPage 5 of 8



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 97 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2ato Administrative ReportPage 6 of 8



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 98 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2ato Administrative ReportPage 7 of 8

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 99 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2ato Administrative ReportPage 8 of 8

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 100 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 1 of 9

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 101 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 2 of 9



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 102 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 3 of 9



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 103 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 4 of 9



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 104 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 5 of 9



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 105 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 6 of 9



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 106 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 7 of 9



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 107 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 8 of 9

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 108 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 2b toAdministrative Report Page 9 of 9



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 109 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 1 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 110 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 2 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 111 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 3 of 12

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 112 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 4 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 113 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 5 of 12

ryan
Typewriter



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 114 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 6 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 115 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 7 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 116 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 8 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 117 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 9 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 118 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 10 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 119 

ryan
Typewriter

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 11 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 120 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 3to Administrative ReportPage 12 of 12



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 121 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 1 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 122 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 2 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 123 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 3 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 124 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 4 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 125 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 5 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 126 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 6 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 127 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 7 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 128 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 8 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 129 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 9 of 10



Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 130 

ryan
Typewriter
Attachment 4to Administrative ReportPage 10 of 10



City of Newberg: City Council Rules & Guidelines (April 18, 2011) – Quasi-Judicial Hearing for Non-Land Use                      
O:\Legal\Council\Hearing Formats\Final Versions Adopted in April 18 2011 Council Rules & Guidelines\Quasi-Judicial Hearing_Non-Land Use.doc 

 

Newberg City Council 

 QUASI-JUDICIAL NON-LAND-USE 

PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

(Non-Land Use) 

 
1. OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS 

TESTIMONY, PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 
 

2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS, BIAS, EX-PARTE CONTACT, AND OBJECTIONS TO 

JURISDICTION  

CITY ATTORNEY LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENTS:  

READ “Quasi-Judicial Announcements” Sheet 

 

3. STAFF REPORT 
                

4. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 

Time Limits: A. Mayor sets time limits 

    B. Citizen goes to witness table, states name & presents testimony 

 A. PROPONENTS (Principle Proponent/s first, then others or undecided) 
 B. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 

C. PRINCIPAL PROPONENT REBUTTAL 
 

5. QUESTIONS OF PROPONENTS AND OPPONENTS FROM THE FLOOR OR THE 

CITY COUNCIL DIRECTED THROUGH THE CHAIR 
 

6. PUBLIC AGENCY LETTERS OR COMMENTS 
 

7. CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 

CITY ATTORNEY LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

8.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  
 

9. DELIBERATION OF COMMISSION INCLUDING DISCUSSION OF CRITERIA WITH 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

10. ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
 A. ORDER – Usually requires passage of order.            
 B. VOTE – Voice vote is permitted. 

C. MAJORITY OF A QUORUM – Requires majority of the quorum for passage. 
D. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other council action; separate vote on 

each action is required. 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 131 

ryan
Typewriter
Exhibit Cto Order No. 2014-035

file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/benham/Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Council/Hearing%20Formats/Quasi-Judicial%20Announcement%20by%20City%20Attorney.doc


City of Newberg        Page 1 of 5 
Findings of Fact: Exhibit D to Order No. 2014-0035 
\\Client\G$\Recorder\Council Packet\Draft Packets\2014-1020\Exhibit D to Order_Findings of Fact_Draft 3 TAS Rev.doc  

 

Exhibit D 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

 

Findings of Fact 
 
 
The Council adopts the following Findings of Fact after deliberations 
based upon the record submitted and testimony presented in the public 
hearing. These facts address criteria established by Ordinance No. 2009-
2714 and found in the Newberg Code, Section 36.37. They are as follows: 

 
 
§ 36.37. Criteria. The PSF will be established based upon the following criteria: 
 

(A) The need for services.  
 

Findings of Fact: 
  

 Current staffing of Communication Officers is 9.0 FTE, a number that has 
remained constant since 1999. 
 

 In addition to the nine current FTEs, the Dispatch Center is incurring overtime 
costs in an amount approximately equivalent to an additional FTE. 
 

 Call volume, population, activities, and field personnel have increased over 
time while staffing of the dispatch center has remained stagnant. 
 

 City is relying on other staff to cover shifts, adversely affecting their ability to 
perform their primary duties. 

 
 Internal staffing and workload evaluation calculates that between 11.5 and 

12.6 FTEs would be required to fully staff the dispatch center. 
 

 The ISO rating for Newberg Fire Department could be negatively affected if 
staffing falls below two (2) dispatchers per shift, resulting in increased 
insurance rates to Newberg citizens and businesses. 

 
 Chief Casey has shown the necessary staffing needs in order to meet safety 

standards for communications officers and provide service to the community. 
The need is to retain existing, and add additional communications officers. 

 
Conclusion:   Based upon the entire record, the need for 10 communications 

officer positions has been established. 
 
 

 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 132 



City of Newberg        Page 2 of 5 
Findings of Fact: Exhibit D to Order No. 2014-0035 
\\Client\G$\Recorder\Council Packet\Draft Packets\2014-1020\Exhibit D to Order_Findings of Fact_Draft 3 TAS Rev.doc  

 

 
(B) Comparison of resources to provide such service by examining the following: 

 
(1) 
 

 

 

 Comparison with resources available in similar communities. 

Findings of Fact:
 There  is  limited  information  reviewing  comparisons  to  other  dispatch 

 centers. 

 Of 10 PSAPS of similar size, four had more FTE’s than Newberg.  Four 
 of those agencies share a similar total telephone call volume.  Only one of 
 those four staffed fewer FTEs than Newberg-Dundee. 

 Consolidation of the 9-1-1 center has been studied in 1998 and 2000, and 
 after considering those studies consolidation was not pursued. 

 Conclusion: Based  on  the  entire  record,  the  Newberg-Dundee 
 Communications  Center  employs  less  FTEs  than  similar 
 communities. 

 
 
 

(2) Comparison with resources used to provide services, such as number of 
communications officers…as shown per capita through nationally 
recognized service studies. 

 
Findings of Fact: 

 
 There exists no national governmental standard for 9-1-1 dispatch centers. 

 
 9-1-1 center comparisons are dissimilar due to operational differences. 

 
 The best information regarding standardized staffing calculations for 

dispatch centers comes from the Association of Public Safety 
Communication Officials (APCO). 

 
 Utilizing APCO PROJECT RETAINS, an internal staffing and workload 

evaluation was conducted, resulting in a calculated need of between 11.5 
to 12.6 FTE. 

 
Conclusion: Based on the entire record, the best nationally 

recognized service studies do not base service per 
capita but on operational factors.  Those standard 
staffing calculations show a need for between 11.5 and 
12.6 FTEs. 

 
 

(3) Comparison of statistics showing the calls for service or incidents that 
require services from year to year to determine if the need for services has 
increased or decreased. 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 133 



City of Newberg        Page 3 of 5 
Findings of Fact: Exhibit D to Order No. 2014-0035 
\\Client\G$\Recorder\Council Packet\Draft Packets\2014-1020\Exhibit D to Order_Findings of Fact_Draft 3 TAS Rev.doc  

 

 
Findings of Fact: 

 
 Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) calls for services (CFS) has steadily 

increased from 25,479 in 2005 to 39,127 in 2013, an increase of 53.6%. 
 CAD calls for Service best represent the workload of communication 

officers, police officers and firefighters.  These calls represent distinct 
services that result in a generated computer report. 
 

 Business and 9-1-1 calls varied little over the same time period. 
 

Conclusion: Based on the entire record, the best measure of 
workload indicates an increase of 53.6% in calls for 
service without any increase of staffing, which is not 
sustainable.  

 
 

(4) Other recognized studies or authoritative sources. 
 

 The National Emergency Number Association, 2003 report (Kimball 
report) studied 9-1-1 services serving populations of fewer than 
140,000.  That report suggests 7-17 dispatchers are needed for 
medium sized PSAPS (19,000-100,000 population) based on 
population alone. 

 
Conclusion: Based on the entire record, based solely on population, 

both the current staffing and proposed staffing are within 
the range identified by NENA.  

 
 

(5) Take into consideration the increase or decrease in population.  
 
Findings of Fact: 
 
 Staffing levels for communication officers have remained constant since 

FY 1999-2000. 
 

 The population of the Newberg-Dundee dispatch area was 28,648 in 
2000. 

 
 The population of the Newberg-Dundee dispatch area in 2013 was 

39,127. 
 

 The population in the Newberg-Dundee dispatch area has grown 36.6% 
from 2000 to 2013.  

 
 The population continues to grow and Portland State University 

forecasts continued growth at a moderate to strong pace through 2035.  
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 134 



City of Newberg        Page 4 of 5 
Findings of Fact: Exhibit D to Order No. 2014-0035 
\\Client\G$\Recorder\Council Packet\Draft Packets\2014-1020\Exhibit D to Order_Findings of Fact_Draft 3 TAS Rev.doc  

 

Conclusion: Based on the entire record, the population has increased 
significantly since communication officer staffing was last 
increased.  The calls for service have increased. This 
growth patter is expected to continue.  Therefore, more 
communications officers are needed to meet the 
demands for service. 

 
(6) A reasonable connection between those who need, use, or are likely to 

need or use the service, and those who are charged the fee. 
 

Findings of Fact: 
 

 The population of Newberg is a factor, which can reasonably be used to 
predict the number of CFS’s.  

 
 The developed properties within the city allow for occupancy of those 

properties. A reasonable method of determining whether or not a 
property is developed is if it has a water connection for utility service to 
the property.  

 
 Usually the person occupying the property is the one responsible for 

payment of such water services.  
 
 It is reasonable to equate the size and number of water meters 

servicing the property, to the number of occupants. In addition, 
developed property has a need for police and fire services to protect 
the development.  

 
 Therefore, it is reasonable to assess the fee based upon the water 

service and residential meter equivalent (RME).  
 

Conclusion: Based upon the entire record, the City has the authority 
to levy a fee to be paid by a particular class of persons 
when a reasonable connection is shown between those 
persons and the use of services. There exists a logical 
connection between the use of police and fire dispatch 
services and developed property. It is reasonable to 
conclude that property has been developed because it 
uses City water services. Therefore, having the person 
responsible for the water service, also be responsible for 
payment of the Public Safety Fee (PSF) is reasonable.  

 
(7) The amount of revenue needed to support the resources to provide the 

services.  
 

Findings of Fact: 
 

 The estimated amount of revenue to support a communications officer 
positions is estimated to be one (1) dollar per residential meter 
equivalent (RME) per month. This is shown in Attachment B to the 
Administrative Report.  

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 135 



City of Newberg        Page 5 of 5 
Findings of Fact: Exhibit D to Order No. 2014-0035 
\\Client\G$\Recorder\Council Packet\Draft Packets\2014-1020\Exhibit D to Order_Findings of Fact_Draft 3 TAS Rev.doc  

 

 
 The purpose of the PSF is to support two (2) communications officer 

positions.  
 

 To accomplish the stated purpose, the PSF shall be set at two (2) 
dollars per RME per month.  

 
 To maintain the level of funding, this PSF shall be indexed to the 

Portland CPI-U for the prior calendar year, as published by the U.S. 
Bureau of Labor Statistics. 
 
Conclusion: Based on the entire record, the Council finds it 
necessary to set the COPSF at $2.00 per month per RME, indexed to 
the Portland CPI-U for the prior calendar year, as published by the U.S. 
Bureau of Labor Statistics.  
 

 
(C)  Any other criteria.  

 
Legal authority. 

 
Findings of Fact: 

 
 The PSF method of raising revenue to fund necessary public safety 

activities has been used in other communities. 
 
 The method has been challenged through court review. The 

Supreme Court of Oregon has upheld the method. (See Knapp v. 
Jacksonville, page 10 of Administrative Report.)  

 
 The Council has approved a process for establishing a fee. That 

process has been followed. 
 

Conclusion: Based upon the entire record, the Council has 
authority to establish the PSF through the process 
that the Council approved. The PSF process has 
been followed and the criteria have been met. 
Additionally, the revenue method has been found to 
be legally correct by the Oregon Supreme Court. 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 136 



City of Newberg        Page 1 of 2 
Provisions: Exhibit E to Order No. 2014-0035 
\\Client\G$\Recorder\Council Packet\Draft Packets\2014-1020\Exhibit E to Order No 2014-0035.doc 

Exhibit E 
to Order No. 2014-0035 

 
 

List of Additional Conditions 
for Administration of the Public Safety Fee 

 
The City Council adopts the following additional conditions and delegates the 
necessary authority to the city manager to implement the necessary procedures 
to administer the Public Safety Fee (PSF). In addition to all other authority and 
conditions, the Council adopts the following: 

 
1.  Moneys to be Paid into Public Safety Fund. 

(A)  All Public Safety Fees (PSF) collected by the City will be paid into the Public 
Safety Fund. Such revenues shall be used for funding two (2) communications 
officer positions.  

(B)   To the extent that the PSF’s collected are insufficient, other City funds may be 
used as determined by the city manager, but the city manager may order the 
reimbursement to such other funds if additional PSF’s are thereafter collected. All 
amounts on hand in the Public Safety Fund will be invested by the City in 
investments proper for City funds. 

(C)   The PSF’s paid and collected by virtue of this Order will not be used for general 
or other governmental or proprietary purposes of the City, except to pay for the 
equitable share of the cost of accounting, management, and government, which is 
attributable to the Public Safety Fund.  

(D)   Other than as described above, the PSF’s and charges will be used solely to pay 
for the two (2) communications officer positions, necessary expenses thereof, and 
costs incidental thereto.  

 
2. Collection. 
 

(A) The PSF will be included as an additional item on the City monthly utility billing 
wherever feasible, unless otherwise specified. 

 
(B) Unless another person responsible has agreed in writing to pay the PSF, and a 

copy of that writing is filed with the City and accepted by the City, the person 
normally responsible for paying the City’s water and sewer utility charges is 
responsible for paying the PSF, if the property is located within the city limits. 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 137 



City of Newberg        Page 2 of 2 
Provisions: Exhibit E to Order No. 2014-0035 
\\Client\G$\Recorder\Council Packet\Draft Packets\2014-1020\Exhibit E to Order No 2014-0035.doc 

However, the owner of record of the developed property will, at all times, be 
primarily responsible for payment. For instance, the developed property owner 
will be responsible for payment if a tenant on the developed property does not pay 
the PSF. 

 
(C)  In the event a developed property is not served by a domestic water meter or 

sewer hook-up, or if water and sewer service is disconnected, the developed 
property owner of record is the responsible party. 

 
(D)  A request for water or sewer service, a building permit, or the occupancy of an 

unserviced building will automatically initiate appropriate billing for PSF 
services. 

 
(E)  There will be no charge for an undeveloped property until such time as building 

permits are issued for that property. 
 
(F)  Late charges in the amount reasonably calculated to recuperate the cost of 

duplicate billing, collection, and other administrative costs will be established by 
the City through the city manager’s authority. 

 
 
3. Enforcement. 

 
(A)  In the event funds received from City utility billings are inadequate to satisfy in 

full all of the water, sewer, and PSF charges, credit will be given first to the PSF, 
second to the sewer services charges, third to the charges for water service. 

 
(B)  In addition to other lawful enforcement procedures, the City may enforce the 

collection of charges required by this chapter by withholding delivery of water to 
any premises where PSF’s are delinquent or unpaid. 

 
(C)  Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the City may institute any 

necessary legal proceedings to enforce the provisions of this chapter, including 
but not limited to injunctive relief and collection of charges owing. The City’s 
enforcement rights shall be cumulative. 

 
 

Newberg City Council Business Meeting
Page 138 


	Item VI 1a Council Minutes 2014-1006.pdf
	Item VI 1b Exhibit A Mins 2014-1006.pdf
	Item VI 1c Exhibit B Mins 2014-1006.pdf
	Item VI 1d Exhibit C Mins 2014-1006.pdf
	Item VI 1Minutes RCA for 2014-1020.pdf
	Item VI 2 RCA Resolution No. 2014-3164 Cop car lease.pdf
	A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to approve the lease purchase of one replacement vehicle for the Newberg-Dundee Police Department and reimburse itself from the proceeds of a Tax-exempt financing 

	Item VI 3 RCA Resolution 2014-3167 YC Hazard Mit plan.pdf
	A Resolution adopting the Yamhill County multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan  

	Item VI 3a Res 2014-3167 Exhibit A.pdf
	Item VII 1 RCA PSF Order 2014-0035.pdf
	An Order establishing a public safety fee (PSF) in the amount of two ($2.00) dollars per residential meter equivalency (RME) per month for the purpose of funding two communications officer positions 

	Item VII 1a Order 2014-0035 Exhibit A Ord2714.pdf
	Item VII 1b Order 2014-0035 Exhibit B Administrative Report.pdf
	Item VII 1bi Order 2014-0035 Budget Attachments to Admin Rpt.pdf
	Item VII 1bii Order 2014-0035 Attachment 1.pdf
	Item VII 1biii Order 2014-0035 Attachment 2a.pdf
	Item VII 1biv Order 2014-0035 Attachment 2b.pdf
	Item VII 1bv Order 2014-0035 Attachment 3.pdf
	Item VII 1bvi Order 2014-0035 Attachment 4.pdf
	Item VII 2 Order 2014-0035 Exhibit C Hearing Format.pdf
	Item VII 3 Order 2014-0035 Exhibit D to Order_Findings of Fact_.pdf
	Item VII 4 Order 2014-0035 Exhibit E.pdf
	10-20-14 CC Agenda.pdf
	PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET)

	10-20-14 CC Agenda.pdf
	PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET)

	10-20-14 CC Agenda.pdf
	PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET)

	10-06-14 CC Agenda.pdf
	PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET)




